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For the best Curry in Surrey

come to the ' :'r'; :

TANOUR
NAHAL 5

FULLY LICENSED
RESTAURANT

Specialising in Tanduri Chicken
and Tanduri Chicken Massalla

HOT MEALS TO TAKE AWAY
ANY TYPE OF PARTY CATERED FOR

Open Noon till 3 p.m., & p.m. till 11.30 p.m.
Open 7 days including all Holidays

GOOD CAR PARKING FACILITIES

29 Commercial Road - Woking
Reservations: Telephone Woking 60620




| H. MULLINS <2

|| Building Contractor

Plumber - Decorator
PROMPT SERVICE SKILLED CRAFTSMEN
REASONABLE CHARGES ]I

64 GOLDSWORTH ROAD
WOKING

Tel, Woking 61170
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SENDING FLOWERS ?

ll —for the freshest flowers and largest
solection of tropical house plants in

this area
é‘ﬂe g" enc A
|| [Constance Spry Diploma)
We deliver to Woking and all outlying areas daily
Wedding Flowers a Speciality Vasas Pot Covers
Glassware
3 CENTRAL BUILDINGS, CHOBHAM ROAD

WOKING

L Tel. Woking 4987
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TOMSON. BULL & CoLtd

INSURANCE BROKERS

15A & 16 THE BROADWAY
WOKING, SURREY

Tel. Woking 4097 - 8

ALL FORMS OF INSURANCE ARRANGED INCLUDING LIFE,

UMIT TRUST LINKED CONTRACTS, PENSIONS, MOTOR,

HOUSEHOLDERS, SHOPKEEPERS COMBINED. PERSOMNAL
ACCIDENT AND SICKNESS ETC.

FIRST CLASS COVER AND SERVICE—COMPETITIVE RATES
ALL IMSURAMCES PLACED WITH BRITISH INSURANCE
ASSOCIATION OFFICES OR LLOYDS
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JAMES WALKER & CO LTD

Woaoking's largest employer of labour.

World leaders in fluid sealing technology.
Manufacturers of the famous " LION " seals
and gaskets, bellows, anti-vibration

materials and precision rubber mouldings.

COMPANIES, DEPOTS & AGENTS IN EVERY
INDUSTRIAL CENTRE AND FIFTY COUNTRIES

James Walker & Co. Ltd.
Lion Works

Woking

Surrey
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THE WOKING AND DISTRICT
CHAMBER OF TRADE

Insugurated: 10th February, 1898

Affiliated to the NATIONAL CHAMBER F TRADE

ITS OBJIECTS
are o promote and protect the interests of Traders generally, Lo
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LIST OF PHOTOGRAPHS

=~

Albion House, with Shopping Arcade
Commonwaealth Memorial, Brookwood
Church of the Good Shopherd, Pyrford a5
Presbytenian Church, Waking 23
Qld People’s Flats at Maybury e
5t. Mary's Church, Byfleet . ; e 38
51, Mary's Church, Horsell . == 27
33
22
49
51

o e

5t. Nicholas' Church, Pyrford

5t. Peter's Church, Old Waoking

Sheer House, West Byfleet ...

Sheerwater Industrial Estate
Swimming Pool, Woking ... - 57

St. Columba’s Retreat Home, The Chapel 80
Trinity Methodist Church, Woking ., 26
The Mosque - 43
Waterers Park, Knaphill . 59
Winsten Churchill School, St. John's e EL

Woking Park .on BO/E5



CONTENTS

Introduction i 1
Motes on the History of Woking . i 15
Manor of Woking .. o 12
Waoking Parish Church - 22
Horsell ... 27
Pyrford .. b N
Byfleat : . : a7
Sutton Place ” o a1
Hoe Place .. 5 Voo ot e 41
Mewark Priory i; 41
Ancient Monuments e 45
Buildings of Architectural or Historic Interast . 45
Woking as a Shopping Centre . 2 a7
Industry 4 49
Services and Amenities ... e o 56
Classified Information (Alphabetical) 63
Health and Welfare Services . 72
Places of Worship Vel 3
Index to Advertisers ... o ... B1/82
Street Plan and Index ... . Opposite Page B4
List of Photographs ... 8
British Rail (Suburban System) .. Street Plan
R.A.C. Area Map it B3



Woking's Leading
Local Newspaper
the

NEWS & MAIL

News
Pictures
Sport
Advertisements
Houses for Sale
Cars for Sale
Situations Vacant

Etc.

EVERY THURSDAY

52 Chertsey Road - Woking
Tel. 61581

10




INTRODUCTION

OKING is an attractive residential centre approximately

26 miles from London, seven miles from Guildford, 15
from Windsor and within easy reach of the South Coast
Pleasantly situated in the county of Surrey, with a good rail-
way service and easy of access by road, Woking has many
open spaces and beauty spots. It is a popular shopping centre
and attracts trade from the surrounding districts.

The town is administered by an Urban District Council with
responsibilities in accordance with the appropriate municipal
acts. In addition it has delegated powers for personal health,
welfare and education matters.

The surrounding countryside with its luxuriant pine and fir
plantations, the abundant growth of gorse and heather and
the natural colours of the countryside make Woking an area
desirable as a place both to live and to visit,

The area comprises the civil parishes of Woking which
includes Knaphill, and Brookwood, Byfleet, Horsell and Pyr-
ford, all of which have long associations with the past. All
bring some special contribution to help make Woking popular
and attractive. In addition there are many beautiful places to
visit within a short distance of the town. Ripley with its village
green, stately manor and its gabled houses, Pyrford and its
Tudor mansion, the lovely lake and common at Wisley made
known by the famous gardens of the Royal Horticultural
Society, the old village of Chobham with its ancient church
and the many pleasant spots along the River Wey, are just a
few examples. Bisley Commaon, near to the western boundary,
is famous for its camp of the National Rifle Association and
the annual shooting competitions.

During past centuries many royal personages and famous
historical figures have lived or stayed in the neighbourhood.
In more recent times the following are numbered among its
past and present residents: The Duke of Sutherland, K.T., The
Dowager Duchess of Manchester, the Earl of Balfour, the Earl
of Iveagh, the Rt. Hon. Alfred Lyttleton, the Rt. Hon. Sir Charles
Dilke, Sir Joseph Leese, Mr. W. 5. Penley, Mr. George Bernard
Shaw, Mr. H. G. Wells, Dame Ethel Smyth, Lord Northclifie,
Madame Adelina de Lara and Mr. Paul Getty.

One of the interesting aspects of a town is its development
over the years. As a guide to this the following brief outline
of the history of Woking is given in the hopes that it will
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GAMHONS

WOKING

YR

FAMILY STORE

FOR
FASHIONS, CHILDREN'S WEAR, HANDBAGS,
HOSIERY, GLOVES, MENSWEAR, LINENS, DRESS
FABRIC, SOFT FURNISHING, CARPETS, CHINA
AND GLASS, HARDWARE, GARDEN FURNITURE,
LAWN MOWERS, WHITEWOOD

ALSO OUR
WALLPAPER AND PAINT SHOP

CLOSED OPEN

ALL DAY R N ALL DAY

MONDAY 60844 WEDNESDAY
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enable readers to know a little of its history. Within the
compass of the guide such an article must be limited but it
is hoped that some readers will be encouraged to delve a
little deeper into local history.

N

THE COAT OF ARMS OF WOKING

By Letters Patent dated 18th
June, 1930, the following Arms were
assigned to Woking by the College
of Arms:

" Quarterly Or and Gules a Cross
Flory between in the first and fourth
Quarters a Fleur-de-Lys, and in the
second and third Quarters a Fret all
gounterchanged *.
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Open
All Day
Wednesdays

You could be an Ambassador’s
wife. You could be a busy
professional woman

commuting between London
and any other capital of the
world. You could be an equally
busy housewife and mother
conducting home and

children with expert skill.

Into whichever of these or
other environments you may
fit, your clothes should be so
right, that once put on you can
forget them, and get on

with the complex, yet
undeniably fascinating and
stimulating business of living.
Philpots clothes are visualised
as part of contemporary life.

1 GUILDFORD ROAD
WOKING
Telephone 62351
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NOTES ON THE HISTORY OF WOKING
by E. R. Gamester

In common with most other residential areas development
has been limited to more recent times and in particular to the
last one hundred years or so. The coming of the railway
system brought about an extension of communications and
the ability to travel from one place to another in much shorter
time. As railway lines were laid and stations provided at places
within the area around London the business man no longer
found it necessary to live close to his work. He built his
house in more pleasant surroundings and travelled to and
fro. With the improvement in social conditions this applied
to more and more folk. Builders and estate developers quickly
recognised this new market and more houses became
available.

Here in Woking, after some delay due to legal difficulties,
the development began round the north side of the railway
station which the London and South Western Railway estab-
lished about 1838, The station was built on heathland, known
locally as the Black Forest. Gradually the character of the
place began to change. The old market town, described by
Daniel Defoe in 1724 as " a country market town so out of the
way that "tis very little heard of in England ”, began to dis-
appear as houses were built in the neighbourhood of the
station. The old houses were in the village known as Old
Woking which consisted of one street with some good
examples of mid 17th and 18th century propertics.

In early records the name of Woking is known to have
developed from Waocingas in the Bth century, Wochinges in
the 9th, Wockynge and Wochynghe in the 12th and 14th
centuries to its present form. It is situated in the Hundred of
the same name and the River Wey runs through the district,
The Basingstoke Canal also passes through the town. The
canal was constructed in the later years of the 18th century.
The Wey Mavigational Canal which forms the boundary
between West Byfleet and Byfleat was built at an earlier date.
It continues on through Pyrford and Guildford.

In that most famous of surveys, the Domesday Book of
1086 the following description of Woking is given:

“ There are six caracutes of arable land. In demesne is one
caracute; and thirty-three villeins, and nine borders. with
twenty caracutes more. There is a church, held by Osbern

{Bishop of Exeter); and a mill, worth 11s. 4d. yearly: and
15
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far all eccasians

Quotations without obligation
Tickets obtained I
Meals arranged

Our Representative will be happy to call
to discuss your Outing

PLEASE RING: ALDERSHOT 23322
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WOKING 63691

WE HAVE VACANCIES AT OUR WOKING DEPOT
FOR DRIVERS, CONDUCTORS, CONDUCTRESSES
EXCELLENT PAY AND CONDITIONS
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thirty-two acres of meadow; and woods that yield one hundred
and thirty-three swine. Of this land, Walter Fitz-Other holds
three virgates; which in the time of King Edward, who detached
this estate from the manor, was held by a certain forester:
there is no stock upon it. In the time of King Edward, and
subsequently, this manor was valued at £15 a year by tale
It is now valued at £15 by weight, and to the sheriff 25s.”

The lot of the villeins or serfs at Woking was somewhat
easier than on other estates. Their mowing services were
worth 40s. annually but later this was reduced to 10s. Their
daughters were not allowed to marry outside the manor unless
permitted to do so by the Lord of the manor.

Henry Il afforested the parkland in and round Woking and
finally declared the whole county as forest. Villagers were for-
bidden to allow their pigs to roam the forest in order to prevent
any inconvenience to the royal wisitors to the hunt. Strict
regulations were enforced upon the owners of the land to
ensure the utmost comfort and free passage for these visitors.

There were 105 people indicted in the county as recusants
in the year 1587 Many of these were from well known families
and sometimes whole families were accused. Mention is made
of a family named Hobson from Woking indicted that year.

Life was fairly quiet in Weking throughout the early cen-
turies but after the success of the French Revolution there
were some difficult times in England. Wages were reduced in
and around the town in common with other areas. In 1830
they were reduced from 5/- to as low as 3/- per week. This
angered the people and it is recorded that great crowds
gathered together to protest, These were often broken up and
sometimes prisoners taken. On one occasion when it was
believed that there were such prisoners at Dorking. a great
crowd assembled in Woking to march there to release them.
However, the crowd were persuaded this was not so and the
peocple dispersed.

The Shah Jehan Mosque, Oriental Road, was built in 1889,
Doctor Leitner took owver the buildings originally opened in
1865 by the Prince of Wales, later King Edward VI, as a train-
ing school for actors. This was not successful and Dr. Leitner,
a distinguished linguist founded the Oriental Institute there and
in 1889 built the mosque in the grounds. It is still in use as the
headquarters of the British Muslim Society.

The oldest school in the village of Woking was the Church
School, opened in 1848.
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We have by far the largest stock in the country

Nowhere can vou see so many instruments (we deal enly in

organs) or get better service, Our customers come from all over

the world becouse we stock all the best models of all the best

makes. Bring an organ into YOUR home and provide musical

enjoyment for all the family. We have Tull tuition facilities. using

I the latest ' easy-to-play ° methods. Why not call in and see for
yvoursall ¢

THE ARTHUR LORD ORGAN STUDIOS LTD.

GUILDFORD ROAD, WOKING
Telephone 66122
Closed All Day Mondays Open Thursdays to 8 pom.
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MANOR OF WOKING. From early records Woking appears to
have been the property of the Crown. William the Ceonqueror
reserved it for his own use. King John, soon after succeeding
to the throne granted it to Alan Basset. His son Gilbert held it
in the years 1236 - 37. Upon his death his brother Fulk who
was Bishop of London, held it and when he died in 1269 it
was passed to the younger brother Philip. There being no male
to succeed the manor passed to his daughter Aliva.

Her son, later to become known as the Elder Despensor,
upon the death of his mother became involved in some law-
suits over his title to the estate. He was executed in 1326 at
the time Edward Il was deposed and the manor reverted to
the Crown. Edward Il granted it to his uncle, Edmund of
Woodstock, Earl of Kent. It remained in this family with several
subsequent changes due to death or execution until it came
into possession of Beaufort, Duke of Somerset. It was in 1451
that Henry VI granted the right to hold a fair every Whit
Tuesday to Edmund and his heirs.

Edmund was killed at the Battle of St. Albans and records
show that he held the manor from the King upon payment of
one clove gillyflower a year. In 1509 Margaret Beaufort died
and Woking again came into the hands of the King. Henry
VIl had a liking for it and he took up residence there from
time to time. There are several royal letters addressed from
Waoaking in proof of this. Also in existence is a letter to Wolsey.
Archbishop of York, when he was with Henry at Woking.
intimating his election as a cardinal.

James | in 1620 made a grant of the manor to Sir Edward
Zouch, Marshal of the Royal Household. On his death in 1634
it passed to his son James, Sir Edward was buried at night in
Woking Church in accordance with his expressed wishes.
Ultimately the manor passed to James’'s second son, another
James. He became a person of some ability and character in
Surrey and was highly respected as High Sheriff of the County.
He held the property for fifty years and at his death it reverted
to the Crown. In 1662 he was granted a charter for a fair on
12th September and to hold a weekly market on Fridays. He
built the market house in Woking in 1665. He also built Hoe
Place nearby the house his grandfather had built. His grand-
father, Sir Edward built a brick beacon on high ground near
Hoe Bridge Place. This was used to display a light to guide
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messengers to James | when he was staying there. It fell into
ruins and was demaolished in 1858.

Charles Il leased the manor to Lord Grandison for a thousand
years for the benefit of his cousin Barbara, Duchess of Cleve-
land and her children. She died in 1709 and seven years later
the trustees sold to John Walter. His son Abel Walter suc-
ceeded him and in 1748 an Act of Parliament replaced the
thousand year lease granting him the fee simple. Four years
later he sold the estate to Richard. Lord Onslow in whose
family it still remains.

In an early document there is mention of a fulling mill in
1271 and a water mill at the end of the 14th century, both
belonging to the manor. Fulling is a process in the manufacture
of cloth. Henry VIl leased the mills to a Thomas Spencer.

Telephone: Woking 61754 -5 Established 1880

H. Ingram & Sons Ltd.

FUNERAL DIRECTORS |
and
Embalmers

24 HOUR SERVICE

113- 19 Goldsworth Road + Woking + Surrey
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PEAK

‘ peak contractors (woking) limited

We can build anything to your
own Drawings and Specifications
and can also offer our Clients
a comprehensive and imaginative
Design, Planning and Building service

39 HIGH STREET, KNAPHILL, WOKING
Telephone Brookwood 2926/7/8
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St. Mater's,
Ol Waking

[Photo by
Tha County
Fross,
Woking)

WOKING PARISH CHURCH. The Church of St. Peter dates
from the beginning of the 12th century, if not perhaps a little
before. It was restored in 1878 and in 1888. Two walls of the
ancient building still stand. The north wall, built of whole flints
and pieces of ironstone conglomerate is a good example of
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Presbyterian Church, Woking {Phote by The County Press, Woking)

WADHAMS

—— LIMITED

Main Dealers for Morris, M.G., Wolseley and |
Daimler

SALES, SERVICE, PARTS AND ACCIDENT REPAIR
|
SELF-DRIVE CARS r

Wadhams Ltd., 82 Goldsworth Road, Woking
WOKING 81444

WADHAM STRINGER ‘l
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| NORTHFLEET moTEL
Bed and Breakfast

Wedding Receptions and Private Parties our
L Speciality

LICENSED BAR

GUILDFORD HILL, WOKING
Tel. Woking 60350

Il AMPLE PARKING SPACE

Proprietors: Mr. and Mrs. D. J. Harden-Brewer

| ProroceAPLze

m?'h‘u“ t:ﬂdll @L:!ﬂr {"_‘)‘Iuc!iEH tM
DIRECT COLOUR

* " * b s *

Wad'dll'ngs a sj}ecia!in‘y

PICTURE FRAMING

SIDNEY FRANCIS, auLLp. ARPS.

56 MAYBURY ROAD, WOKING

Tel. 6139
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Triravp 2ot adist Cis™, Wekis; {Fhate by The T=unb Doz, “Woi'oa)

such early masonry. Much of the west wall is hidden by the
tower, beneath which is the only present available entrance.
The lower part of the tower dates from about 1240 and some
hundred years later the stone addition was built, The wooden
door is the original Norman door made of oak planks bound
together by iron straps.

The gallery at the west end was erected in 1622 and was
provided by Sir Edward Zouch, Kt., Lord of the manor, accord-
ing to the description which it bears. The six sided pulpit dates
from the same time. There are eight bells in the tower, two of
them being added in 1929, Five of the old ones are dated 1684
but one was recast in 1187. The other bell is dated 1766 and
has the initials I.F. The parish registers date from 1653,
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English .%tunrmnﬁuns Co. Ltd,

PURBECKSTON Reqd.

9 & 11 CHURCH STREET, WOKING, SURREY
Telephone Woking 4865

Monumental and Architectural
Masons
Sculptors Lettercarvers

Workers of all
Granites, Marbles,
Slare ~nd Sivras

S — S e e

ARPETS

CASH- AND - CARRY
at Warehouse Prices

TUFTED CARPETS
From 19/6 sq. yd.

Dozens of rolls of Broadloom in stock

at
TOP - DECK
6 -7 Duke Street, Woking 64509
% CARPET WAREHOUSE

Closed all day Wednesday JI
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St Mory's
Church,
Harsall

(Photo by
The Cowniy
Praas,
Whaking)

HORSELL. The chapter of Horsell was originally in the posses-
sion of the Monastery of Westminster. In 1258 the Abbot
granted the advowson together with that of Pyrford to the
Priory of Aldbury later called Newark. Four years later they
were both annexed to the Church of Woking. There is no
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R. PAIN & SONS

LTD.

Il BUILDERS - DECORATORS
HEATING and SANITARY ENGINEERS

REPAIRS TO PROPERTY
A EPECIALITY

OIL, SOLID FUEL OR GAS

|
‘ HEATING BY
r POTTERTON APPROVED INSTALLERS

AGENTS FOR

AGA COOKERS

SHOWROOM AND OFFICES

1719 CHURCH STREET
WOKING
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mention of Horsell in Domesday Book as it came within the
manor of Pyrford. In 1291 the chapels of Horsell and Pyrford
were valued at £10.

Early records show the name Horishull in the 13th century
and Horshill in the 18th.

The Parish Church of Horsell, 5t. Mary the Virgin, was built
in the early part of the 14th century. The north wall dates from
this period. The tower was added in the 15th and the south
aisle early in the 16th. The windows in the north wall are of
differing dates. There is a 15th century two-light window,
another 15th century one very much restored, one probably
from the original building and a modern two-light window.

The nave has some old oak timbers with large tie beams
in the roof. The oak pulpit is from the 17th century and has
panels carved in a diamond pattern. There are several mem-
orials and brasses.

The Rev. John Back, uncle of a later vicar, was appointed in
1878 and the restoration of the church was due to his efforts
and generosity. The east window commemorates his gift of
the chancel and a mosaic pavement of Italian workmanship, a
great improvement in the former brick building.

The end of the south aisle became the Chapel of the Holy
Trinity and seating capacity was increased by the addition of
the north aisle. The Rev. F. R. Cocks gave the beautiful Bap-
tistry at the west end of the south aisle as a war memorial to
his youngest son killed in World War |,

There is a number of interesting objects, one of which is
described in an inventory from the sixth year of Edward Vi's
reign as a “ broche . It is 11 ft. 7 ins. in length and originally
there were two. Coupled with these in the inventory is a
cauldron. It could be that these were used at parish festivals
but for what purpose is not apparent.

The present bells date from 1741 and were rung for the first
time on 14th December of that year. The registers date from
1653 and containg some interesting entries. The following are
two examples:

October 6th 1677. " Collected then towards the dismall
fire in the market town of Newport in the County of Salop
the sum of 4s5.”

March 19th 1670.  Collected then towards the Ransom
of Michael Kys and Peter Kys, Hungarians, who were
taken and imprisoned by the merciless Turks, 3s. 6d.”
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Herbert M. Nind

Wine and Spirit Merchant

.51, 1924)

11 & 12 HIGH STREET

WOKING
Telephone G3895/6

Specialists in
FULL PARTY CATERING

with or without service

ALL ENQUIRIES WELCOME

* The Only Private Wine Merchant In Town
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PYRFORD. As mentioned previously the manor included
Horsell. The Pyrford Stone standing not far from the Warren is
a sarsen stone from the Bagshot beds. Nothing is known of
its erection at this spot. A few paleclithic and neclithic flints
have been found in the area.

It is interesting to note that in William the Congueror’s
charter to Westminster, Pyrford was included in Windsor
Forest. Domesday recaords that three hides were forest land.
Ecclesiastically it was in the parish of Woking and in Domes-
day it was in the Godley Hundred,

Pyrford was held by Harold under King Edward. He evidently
thought highly of it as he reserved the area for his own use.
Later he granted the manor to the monastery of St. Peter at
Westminster where it remained until the Dissolution. Queen
Mary granted it in 1558 to the new priory of Sheen but a year
later it was once more annexed to the Crown.

Queen Elizabeth granted it to the Earl of Lincoln, Lord High
Admiral in 1574, The manor changed hands a number of times
and in 1628 Sir Robert Parkhurst purchased it from Sir Arthur
Mainwaring. Denzil Onslow bought it from the Mainwaring
family in 1677 and later it passed to his great nephew Thomas,
Lord Onslow and it has descended through to the present
family.

The house was demolished by Robert, Lord Onslow when
he came into possession in 1776. Queen Elizabeth’s summer
house at Pyrford Place said to have been used by her is
preserved as a building of historic appearance.

Dr, Donne lived here when he married the daughter of Sir
George Loseley. Pyrford Park, situated in the three hides of
land reserved for William’s use in the first charter, eventually
became the property of the Lord of the manor. Lord Onslow
turned it to farm use in 1776,

John Evelyn visited ** Purford ™' as a guest of Denzil Onslow.
He wrote in his diary that he sat at the table with * venison,
rabbits, hares, pheasants, partridges, pigeons, quail and
poultrie, all sorts of fowle in season from his own decoy near
the house and all sorts of frash fish . . .~

Pyrford Church, dedicated to St. Nicholas, stands on a
knoll above the meadows by the River Wey and overlooking
Newark Priory. It was built, with walls nearly three feet thick.
about the year 1150 and is a good example of Norman archi-
tecture. Its restoration and preservation is excellent. Inside the
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55 Micholas Church, Pyricrd (Fhote by Tha County Presa, Waking)

church are three consecration crosses, two in the chancel and
one on the west wall of the nave. The Jacobean pulpit, with
its sounding board made of different kinds of wood, bears the
date 1628 and the initials N.B. These are believed to be those
of Micholas Burley who lived in the Old House in Pyriord in
the 17th century. The buttresses are of sarsen stone, a
geological rock formation found in Bagshot,

The church is noted for its wall paintings. One dates from
about the time the church was built. The other is in outline
dating from 1200 or thereabouts. When some restoration work
was being carried out to this in 1967 the earlier one was dis-
covered beneath it. The outline painting shows two scenes
from the Passion of Christ. One shows the scourging, the
executioner using the flail, The hands and feet of Christ are
tied to a pillar. The other scene shows a building and the
figure of Christ in a robe with a criss-cross pattern.

The earlier painting, or fresco, is the remains of a psycho-
machia or battle of the vices and virtues, the only type of
medieval church painting depicting secular subjects such as
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mounted horsemen fighting with spears. An interesting feature
is the procession of figures carrying staves and wearing conical
hats. Experts have not been able to identify this as it appears
to be unique.

The church commenced the restoration and repair of the
murals in February 1967 and it is hoped that funds will
be available for the consecration crosses to receive attention.

The other parish church, of Wisley-cum-Pyriord also built
in the 12th century, is smaller than St. Nicholas. The benefices
were combined in 1631. The new Church of the Good Shep-
herd was dedicated in 1964 and serves the larger population,
All these churches are supported by the parish and services
are regularly held in each.

The Church of England Waifs and Strays Socisty built the
5t. Nicholas Homes in 1906 to accommodate crippled children.
Nine years yater an adjoining Home, 5t. Martins, was built.
Soon after the end of World War | Mr. Rowley-Bristow, Ortho-
paedic Surgeon at St. Thomas's Hospital, took an interest and
began treating and curing youngsters in these homes who
otherwise would have been condemned to a life of helpless-
ness. In nearly twenty years the treatment had become so

Church ol the Good Shephord, Pyriord (Phota by The County Pross, Weking)
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effective and successful, the homes began to accept adults
for treatment. During World War |l casualties were also
treated, At his death in 1947 the homes were re-named the
Rowley-Bristow Hospital to commemorate his great work,

BYFLEET. Domesday Book records that Byfleet possessed a
church and among other items, a mill worth five shillings and
some eel fisheries. The manor at this time was held by the
Abbey of Chertsey and remained so for some time. In 1312
it was in the possession of the King with overlordship still
vested in the Abbey, Edward |l and later Queen Elizabeth were
frequent visitors. The Black Prince held the manor until he
died and was succeeded by his son. Richard Il made a grant
of it to the Earl of Northumberland in 1389. There were other
grants until the end of the 14th century when Parliament
annulled the grants made by Richard. The manor was then
vested in his son Henry. The eldest sons of the kings were
granted Byfleet until Henry VIII when he granted it to Kath-
arine of Aragon in 1533,

Chertsey Abbey was surrendered to the Crown in 1537
James | granted the manor to the Prince of Wales and later
to Anne of Denmark who commenced building “a noble
house " which was completed by Sir James Fullerton. This
house is mentioned by Evelyn in his diary in 1678, It was
rebuilt about 1724. There were several changes in subsequent
years. Frederick, Duke of York purchased the state in 1804,

The nave and chancel of St. Mary's Church were built in the
14th century. Whether this church stood on the same site as
the earlier one mentioned in Domesday is not known for
certain. The chancel roof is gabled and has a panelled ceiling.
Above the north entrance is the outline of a mural painting.
It depicts a king sitting under a canopy and may be a repre-
sentation of Edward | or Il. The painting was uncovered in
1853 and is probably from the 14th century.

An interesting story is that of Stephen Duck, a Rector of
Byfleet in 1752 - 56. He was a Wiltshire labourer who, by his
poetry attracted the attention of Queen Caroline. He received
her benefit and was made Keeper of her library at Richmond.
He was ordained after learning Latin. For some reason he
suffered from melancholia and in a fit of depression drowned
himself in the Thames.
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St Mary's.
Byflost

(Photo by
Tha County

The memory of Canon Tayler, Rector from 1454 - 1489, is
perpetuated by a memaorial brass. Some pieces of medeval
alass, originally part of the east window, have been re-set in
the north wall of the chancel.

Another aisle was added south of the original in 1843, In
1866 and in 1880 the choir was enlarged. The church remains
unspoiled. It is a typical village church with nearly six hundred
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years of faith and witness. One is aware of a sense of dignity
and simplicity when entering the church.

SUTTON PLACE. This famous house is one of the most inter-
esting examples of important English houses built during the
reign of Henry VI It was erected by Sir Richard Weston,
probably between 1523 -25. A fire damaged the north and
east wings in 1560 and the north wing was later demolished in
1782.

The house, built of brick and terra cotta, is two storeys high.
The present staircase dates from the 17th century. The great
hall is magnificent, its principal attraction being the heraldic
stained glass, some dating from the 16th century. The long
gallery in the east wing dates from 1878.

Alterations were made in the 17th century when most of
the fine panelling was introduced. Restoration work was done
in the first decade of this century when Lord MNorthcliffe
resided there. It is now in the occupation of Mr. Paul Getty.

HOE PLACE. Another house of historic interest is Hoe Place
in Old Woking Read. This replaced a mansion belonging to the
Zouch family and, in turn, this replaced a palace from the
time of King Edward Il. The mansion was demolished and the
present building erected by James Zouch, a grandson of Sir
Edward Zouch wha received the original charter from James |.

The house dates from about the beginning of the 18th
century and has a fine staircase and stair-well painted by
Verrio in the style of Hampton Court. In a drawing room there
is a painted ceiling commemorating the triumphs of William
i, believed to be by Sir Godfrey Kneller.

NEWARK PRIORY. On the banks of the River Wey are the
ruins of Mewark Priory which has a connection with the
history of Woking from its very early days. Known at the time
as Aldbury in the parish of Send the priory was founded by
Ronald de Calva and his wife Beatrice de Sandes in the reign
of Richard |, Woking and its chapels at Pyrford and Horsell
were in the control of the Priory. In 1220 the Augustinian
canons who occupied the Priory received from Henry Ill the
right to hold a fair at Ripley. There is a record that the Arch-
bishop of Canterbury, John Peckham stayed at the Priory in
1281 and again two years later,

Just before the surrender of the Priory at the Dissolution
in 1538, Richard Lipscombe was appointed Prior. The value
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The Mosgue

[Phato by
Tha County Prozs,
Woking )

at that time was £258 11s. 11{d. Taken by a Dr. Legh, an
inventory dated 15th January 1539, lists items sent to the
Master of the Jewels in London, which included chalices,
spoons, knives, enamelled cross, bells, censors, crystal, etc.
Before the Dissolution the priors were the Lords of the manar

The Priory was dedicated to the Blessed Virgin Mary and
St. Thomas a Becket. The remains now standing include the
shell of the south transept of the cruciform conventional church
and parts of the chancel. The walls of the ruins are mainly
rubble and flint. In earlier days much of the fallen material was
used in road making but since the site came into possession
of the family of Lord Lovelace, great care has been taken fto
ensure the preservation of what remains. The site and ruins
are now listed as of historical importance.
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